
 

Daniel Billings 
Chief Legal Counsel 
Office of the Governor 
1 State House Station 
Augusta, ME 04333 
Dan.billings@maine.gov 

January 28, 2011 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Billings: 
 
On behalf of the Conservation Law Foundation, and pursuant to Maine’s Freedom of 
Access Law, 1 M.R.S.A. § 401, et seq., we request that the Office of the Governor release 
the following public records in its possession, custody, or control: 
 

1. All public records related to the so-called “red tape audit” or “red tape 
workshop” meetings that have been held in the past month or that are 
scheduled to occur in the future. 
 

2. All public records related to the document entitled “Phase I of Governor’s 
Regulatory Reform Proposals” (a copy of which is attached).  

 
3. All public records related to the nomination of Darryl Brown to the position of 

Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protection. 
 
In responding to this request, please consider “public records” requested under this 
Freedom of Access Act request to include any written, printed or graphic matter or any 
mechanical or electronic data compilation from which information can be obtained, 
directly or after translation into a form susceptible of visual or aural comprehension 
including, but not limited to: field notes, reports, studies, databases, photographs, video 
or audio recordings, correspondence (including electronic email), memoranda, licenses 
and permits, meeting notes and minutes, drafts and working papers, notes and summaries 
of conversations and interviews, and any other forms of written or recorded 
communication, including internal agency staff memoranda. 
 
As provided by the open records law, your office must respond to this request within five 
business days.  If you choose to deny this request, please provide a written explanation 
for the denial including reference to the specific statutory exemptions upon which you 
rely.  Also, please provide all segregable portions of otherwise exempt material.  CLF 
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Daniel Billings 
Chief Legal Counsel 
Office of the Governor 
1 State House Station 
Augusta, ME 04333 
Dan.billings@maine.gov 

February 8, 2011 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Billings: 
 
I received your letter of February 7 indicating that the Governor’s Office is working on 
the Conservation Law Foundation’s January 28 Freedom of Access Act (FOAA) request. 
In that correspondence you state that you intend to limit the scope of the response to our 
request to “documents generated during the period from January 5, 2011 until February 4, 
2011” and you explicitly deny our request to the extent that it seeks records generated 
prior to the inauguration of Governor LePage.  
 
Your response is concerning on several levels. First, its exclusion of records generated 
during Governor LePage’s transition period is strikingly at odds with the Governor’s own 
characterization of that process as “the most transparent transition process in Maine 
history.” More important, it is inconsistent with Maine’s Freedom of Access law, which 
is designed to shed light on the operations of government. 
 
Indeed, Maine’s Law Court has been unequivocal and consistent in identifying the 
purpose of FOAA as “to open public proceedings and require that public actions and 
records be available to the public.”  Dow v. Caribou Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry, 2005 ME 113, ¶ 9, 884 A.2d 667, 669 (quoting Town of Burlington v. Hosp. 
Admin. Dist. No. 1, 2001 ME 59, ¶ 13, 769 A.2d 857, 861).  Consistent with the plain 
language of the FOAA, the Court has found that “to promote such objectives, FOAA 
must be liberally construed.”  Citizens Communications Co. v. Attorney General, 2007 
ME 114, ¶ 9, 931 A.2d 503, 504 citing 1 M.R.S. §401. As a consequence of this liberal 
construction, “[t]he burden of proof is on the agency or political subdivision to establish 
just and proper cause for the denial of a FOAA request.” Dow, 2005 ME 113, ¶ 9, 884 
A.2d 667, 669-70 (quoting Town of Burlington, 2001 ME 59, ¶ 13, 769 A.2d at 861). 
 
CLF’s FOAA request seeks the disclosure of public records from the Governor’s Office.  
The Freedom of Access Act defines “public records” to mean those records that are 1) in 
the possession or custody of a public official and 2) have been received or prepared for 
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